












1 

March 3, 2025 

 

Sent via email  

Board of County Commissioners 

Brevard County  

2725 Judge Fran Jamieson Way 

Viera, FL 32940 

 

Re: Rezoning Application No. 24Z00062 (Tax Account 2600118 – Frank Mastroianni)  

 

Dear Commissioners: 

My name is Michael Gaich and I am the sole Director of Visions Twenty, Inc.  Visions Twenty, Inc. owns 

approximately 6.44 acres of residential Property at 6035 S Highway 1, Rockledge, Florida.  Also, I have also 

worked as a licensed real estate broker in Brevard County since 1973.  

I write to you regarding the rezoning request for tax account 2600118 owned by Frank Mastroianni 

(Rezoning Application No.: 24Z0062). The property owned by Visions Twenty, Inc.  is 330 feet south of the 

Property subject to the rezoning request.  This subject Property has been zoned BU-1 (General Commercial) 

and RU-2-10 (cap 6) (Multiple-Family Residential) since at least 1996.  

The rezoning application for your consideration requests a change of zoning designation from BU-1 on 2.88 

acres and RU-2-10(6) on the remaining 11.92 acres all to RA-2-6 (Single-Family Attached Residential) with 

removal of the 6 unit per acre cap on the entirety of the property.  The Applicant claims in its application 

that it wishes to “correct inconsistency currently with the existing future land use map designations and 

carry forward the intent of 6 units per acre density cap”.  However, the application as presented and the 

refusal to limit the entire site to 6 units to the acre is disingenuous.  The applicant merely needs to change 

the BU-1 to RA-2-6, and limit that density to 6 units to the acre to achieve what he claims he wants to build:  

allegedly townhomes at 6 units to the acre, for a total of 88 units.  RU-2-10 allows single-family attached 

homes; BU-1 also allows attached single-family homes if a small component is commercial, per Sec. 62-

2106.  To truly cure the inconsistency, the Future Land Use of the entire 14.8 acres should be changed to 

RES6! 

The problem with the developer’s stated intent is that he fails to mention FLU Policy 2.10:  “Residential 

development is permissible in these commercial land use designations at density of up to one category 

higher than the closest residentially designated area on the Future Land Use Map (FLUM) which is on the 

same side of the street.”  Therefore, the 2.88 acres can still have 30 units to the acre, without any 

commercial use. 

Additionally, RES15 allows a 25% density bonus if the developer again attempts a PUD, which now would 

not be limited by the density cap of 6 units to the acre.  Anything more that 6 units to the acre is 

incompatible. 

So, if the developer’s intent is to build 157 single-family attached residences, townhomes, on the 14.8 acres 

of land east of Highway 1, those extra 88 units are wholly inconsistent and incompatible with the 

surrounding area, with the County’s Comprehensive Plan and with development in the Coastal High Hazard 

Area. The property to the north and to the south are high value single family residences. More specifically, 

the subject Property is located next to five single family homes to the north, valued conservatively between 
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$1,200,000 $500,000.  To the south is Laguna Vista Condominiums, with 24 luxury condominiums, each 

valued conservatively between $890,000 and $500,000.  

I’d like to underscore the misleading nature of the developer’s rezoning request. The request is to remove 

the current zoning of BU-1 and RU-2-10, specifically with the removal of the density cap of 6 units per acre. 

Removing this limitation of 6 units to the acre, but leaving the RES15 future land use designation is clearly 

calculated to attempt to spread density of 157 townhomes over the entire 14.8 acres.   

Please deny this rezoning request as to the 11.92 acres as it is unnecessary and creates opportunity for the 

developer to build more than 6 units to the acre.  Thank you for your consideration. 

Sincerely, 

Michael Gaich 

Visions Twenty Inc. 

Managing Director 

 

 

Sent to: 

Commissioner Katie Delaney (D1.Commissioner@BrevardFL.gov) 

 Commissioner Tom Goodson (D2.Commissioner@BrevardFL.gov) 

 Commissioner Kim Adkins (D3.Commissioner@BrevardFL.gov) 

 Commissioner Rob Feltner (D4.Commissioner@BrevardFL.gov) 

 Commissioner Thad Altman (D5.Commissioner@BrevardFL.gov)  

 


